
 Civic Centre, Riverside, Stafford 
Contact   Jim Dean 

  Direct Dial   01785 619209 
Email   jdean@staffordbc.gov.uk  

Dear Members 

Audit and Accounts Committee 

A virtual meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee will be held using Zoom on 
Wednesday, 25 November 2020 at 6.30pm to deal with the business as set out on 

the agenda. 

To watch the meeting, please follow the instructions below:- 

1 Log on to Zoom at https://zoom.us/join 
2 Enter Meeting ID 815 4198 4290 when prompted 

3 Enter Password 364854 when prompted 

Or, to listen to the meeting, please call the following telephone number:- 

0131 460 1196 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded. 

Members are reminded that contact officers are shown in each report and members 

are welcome to raise questions etc in advance of the meeting with the appropriate 

officer. 

Head of Law and Administration 
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The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible 
improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in 
part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this 
report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 
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Headlines 

Headlines 
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Stafford Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 for those charged with governance. 

Covid-19 The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a 
significant impact on the normal operations of the Council. The 
council has had to manage several front-line challenges: 
administration of grants to businesses, closure of leisure centres 
and car parks with additional challenges of reopening services 
under new government guidelines. 

The Finance team has been affected to a lesser extent, with 
increased home working meaning internal processes and 
procedures have changed, particularly to reflect remote access to 
systems and authorisation of transactions. 

Councils were still required to prepare financial statements in 
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the 
CIPFA Code of Practice, albeit to an extended deadline for the 
preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and 
the date for audited financials statements to 30 November 2020. 

We updated our audit risk assessment to consider the impact of the pandemic on our audit and 
issued an audit plan addendum on 12 June 2020. In that addendum we reported an additional 
financial statement risk in respect of Covid-19 and highlighted the impact on our VfM approach. 
Further detail is set out on page 6. 

Restrictions for non-essential travel has meant both Council and audit staff have had to adapt to new 
remote working arrangements and remote auditing. This entailed remote accessing financial 
systems, video calling, sharing screens to review working papers, more time required to discuss and 
resolve audit queries, review audit work and additional procedures to gain assurance over 
completeness and accuracy of information provided by the entity. 

Our audit work was completed remotely during July-November. Our findings are summarised on 
pages 6 to 15. We have identified no adjustments to the primary financial statements. Audit 
adjustments relating to disclosures are detailed in Appendix A. We have not raised controls 
recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in 2019/20. There were no 
outstanding recommendations from the prior year’s audit which had not already been actioned, or 
were superseded. 

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would 
require modification of our audit opinion (Appendix C) or material changes to the financial 
statements, subject to the following outstanding matters; 

• receipt of signed management representation letter; and 

• review of the final set of financial statements 

• review of final disclosure amendments 

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is 
consistent with our knowledge of your organisation. 

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unqualified including an Emphasis of Matter paragraph, 
highlighting material valuation uncertainties in relation to the council’s own PPE (land and buildings) 
and its share of Investment property held directly by Staffordshire Pension Fund, which also reported 
a material valuation uncertainty. 

Financial 
Statements 

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the 
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), 
we are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's 
financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council’s income and expenditure for the year; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting 
and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

We are also required to report whether other information 
published together with the audited financial statements 
(including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and 
Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 3 
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Headlines 

Headlines 
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Stafford Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 for those charged with governance. 

Value for Money Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the 
arrangements Code'), we are required to report if, in our opinion, the Council has 

made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM) 
conclusion’). 

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money arrangements. We 
have concluded that Stafford Borough Council has proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your 
arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have not 
identified any new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19. 

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in 
Appendix C. Our findings are summarised on pages 18 to 20. 

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also 
requires us to: 

• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties. 
and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and 

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the 
• to certify the closure of the audit. completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion. 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance and timely collaboration provided by the finance team and other staff during these unprecedented 
times, in what has been a truly exceptional year. 
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Financial statements 

Audit approach 

Overview of the scope of our audit 

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are 
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial 
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code 
of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents will be discussed with management and the Audit 
and Accounts Committee. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and expressing 
an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the 
oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the 
preparation of the financial statements. 

Audit approach 

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is 
risk based, and in particular included: 

• An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment, including its IT systems and 
controls; 

• Completing walkthroughs of controls for significant risk areas; and 

• Discussion with management of the impact of Covid-19 on internal controls and the 
council’s business operations 

Audit approach (continued) 

• Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, 
including the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks 

We have had to alter our audit plan, as communicated to you on 6 of March 2020, to 
reflect our response to the Covid-19 pandemic. As a result, we identified a new significant 
financial statement risk, reviewed the continued appropriateness of materiality levels we 
had determined for the audit and re-considered our Value for Money risk assessment. 

Conclusion 

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to 
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion 
following the Committee meeting on 25 November 2020, as detailed in Appendix C. These 
outstanding items include: 

• receipt of management representation letter 

• review of the final set of financial statements 

• review of final disclosure amendments 

Our approach to materiality 

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements 
and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to 
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable 
law. 

Materiality levels remain the same as reported in our audit plan. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 5 
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Financial statements 

Significant audit risks 
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary 

Covid-19 We have: 

• Engaged with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 pandemic has on the organisation’s ability 
to prepare the financial statements and update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach 

• Liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate practical cross sector responses to issues 
as and when they arise 

• Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements, in light of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

• Evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches was obtained for the purposes of our audit whilst working 
remotely 

• Evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence was obtained to corroborate significant management estimates, such as asset 
valuations, recovery of receivable balances and estimation of pension liability 

• Evaluated management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and the impact on management’s going 
concern assessment 

The council has updated its internal controls in light of Covid-19, in light of increased home and remote working. The finance team was 
able to demonstrate updated process notes which have been adapted for remote working. For example in relation to journals, accounts 
payable and accounts receivable processes. We were able to obtain sufficient evidence, by working with the finance team remotely. 

Management has updated the Council’s financial plans, identified the significant risks and potential planned mitigations in relation both 
income losses and cost pressures arising from the pandemic. Significant disclosures have been included in the narrative report setting 
this out in high level detail. We have considered in detail the impact on going concern, following discussions with management and 
review of supporting evidence, and have gained reasonable assurance that the Council remains a going concern. Further details of our 
work on going concern is set out on page 14. 

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 
transactions 

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. 
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 
recognition. Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the council, we have 
determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because: 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition and opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Stafford Borough Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as 
unacceptable 

Therefore we did not consider this to be a significant risk for the external audit of Stafford Borough Council and there was no change in 
our approach during the course of the audit. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 6 
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Financial statements 

Significant audit risks 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary 

Management over-ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed 
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is 
present in all entities. 

We therefore identified management override of control, 
in particular journals, management estimates and 
transactions outside the course of business as a 
significant risk, which was one of the most significant 
assessed risks of material misstatement. 

We have: 

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals and discussed with management the journal 
posting and authorisation process 

• analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals for more detailed review and 
testing 

• tested a sample of unusual journals recorded during the year for appropriateness and corroboration, on a risk based 
approach; no journals were posted after the draft accounts stage 

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and considered 
their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence 

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions 

There were no significant changes to the council’s processes in relation to journals during the year, or the assumptions and 
methodology used in relation to accounting estimates. No unusual transactions were identified during the course of our audit 
and our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls. 

Valuation of land and buildings 

The council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling 
five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a significant 
estimate by management in the financial statements 
involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in 
key assumptions. We also noted that the Council’s 
external valuer, similar to many other local authority PPE 
valuers, included a material valuation uncertainty note 
within their valuation report in light of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 

We have: 

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to 
valuation experts and the scope of their work 

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert 

• written to the council’s PPE valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out 

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our 
understanding of, the council’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation 

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the council’s asset register 

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management 
has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year end 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of valuation of land and buildings in respect of the assumptions and 
methodologies applied in deriving the estimate. We however note the valuer’s reference to a material valuation uncertainty. In 
response to this matter, the Council has included additional disclosure of this in its final accounts as an audit adjustment. We 
have included an emphasis of matter in our audit opinion to make reference to this material valuation uncertainty. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 7 
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Financial statements 

Significant audit risks 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary 

Valuation of pension fund net liability 

The council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its 
balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, 
represents a significant estimate in the financial 
statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant 
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£55m 
in the Council’s balance sheet) and the sensitivity of the 
estimate to changes in key assumptions. 

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension 
fund net liability as a significant risk, which was one of 
the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement, and a key audit matter. 

We have: 

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s 
pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls 

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the 
scope of the actuary’s work 

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability 

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements 
with the actuarial report from the actuary 

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the 
consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and 

• obtained assurances from the auditor of Stafford Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of 
membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets 
valuation in the pension fund financial statements 

We undertook a number of additional procedures during the course of auditing the pension liability in response to both Council 
specific assumptions and sector wide developments. These resulted in additional enquiries in relation to source data used by 
the actuary, significant movements within the pension assets and liabilities relating to experience items, the impact of the 
McCloud remedy, and additional challenge of specific assumptions made by the actuary. 

We engaged with the pension fund where necessary - via the finance team - to further understand these matters. We also 
made further enquiries with the actuary and through a meeting with them. We were able to resolve these queries satisfactorily 
to gain reasonable assurance over the net pension liability. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 8 
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Financial statements 

Other audit risks 
This section provides commentary on other risks which, although not significant risks, were identified and communicated in the Audit Plan. This section provides a summary of our 
conclusions with regards to these other risks. 

Other risks identified in our Audit Plan Auditor commentary 

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16 
Leases – (issued but not adopted) 

The expected implementation date of this standard for the public 
sector was from 1 April 2020, including local governments. This 
has now been deferred until the 2021/22 financial year. 

It will replace IAS 17 Leases, and the three interpretations that 
supported its application (IFRIC 4, Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases – 
Incentives, and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of 
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease). Under the 
new standard the current distinction between operating and 
finance leases is removed for lessees and, subject to certain 
exceptions, lessees will recognise all leases on their balance 
sheet as a right of use asset and a liability to make the lease 
payments. 

In accordance with IAS 8 and paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code 
disclosures of the expected impact of IFRS 16 should be 
included in the council’s 2019/20 financial statements. The 
Code adapts IFRS 16 and requires that the subsequent 
measurement of the right of use asset where the underlying 
asset is an item of property, plant and equipment is measured in 
accordance with section 4.1 of the Code. 

We have: 

• We have discussed with management the council’s preparation for the adoption of IFRS16 and evaluated the 
processes the council has adopted to assess the impact of IFRS16 on its 2020/21 financial statements and 
whether the estimated impact on assets, liabilities and reserves has been disclosed in the 2019/20 financial 
statements. 

• Assessed the completeness of the disclosures made by the council in its 2019/20 financial statements with 
reference to The Code Local council Leasing Briefings 

Although the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed to 1 April 2021, audited bodies still need to include 
disclosure in their 2019/2020 statements to comply with the requirement of IAS 8 para 31. As IFRS 16 is currently a 
‘standard issued but not yet adopted’, we would expect audited bodies to disclose the title of the standard, the date of 
initial application and the nature of the changes in accounting policy for leases, as a minimum. We are satisfied that 
the council has made that disclosure in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

We however note that the council is still in preliminary stages of preparing for the implementation of IFRS16 and has 
not yet quantified the potential financial impact of IFRS 16. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 9 
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Financial statements 

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements 
Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment 

Land and Buildings – 
Other - £48.8m 

Other land and buildings comprises both specialised assets such as 
crematoriums and public conveniences, which are required to be 
valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at year end, 
reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset necessary to 
deliver the same service provision. The remainder of other land and 
buildings are not specialised in nature and are required to be valued 
at existing use in value (EUV) at year end. The Council has 
engaged Lambert Smith Hampton to complete the valuation of 
properties as at 31 March 2020, as part of its five yearly cyclical 
valuation programme. £45.5m or 93% of total land and building 
assets were revalued during 2019/20. 

The valuation of properties valued by the valuer has resulted in a 
net increase of £8.2m. Management have considered the year end 
value of non-valued properties, and the potential valuation change 
in the assets last revalued at 31st March 2019 to determine whether 
there has been a material change in the total value of these 
properties. Management’s assessment of assets not revalued has 
identified that no material change to the properties values. The total 
year end valuation of Other land and buildings was £48.8m, a net 
increase from 2018/19 (£40.6m). 

We have reviewed the expertise of the Council’s valuer and the 
objectives and scope of their work. The Council has used RICS 
qualified Lambert Smith Hampton valuers (LSH) to carry out its 
land and building revaluations. LSH are a property valuation 
specialist who have a large variety of clients ranging from 
international clients to major institutions and private landlords. 
The valuation reports confirm that valuations are undertaken in 
accordance with RICS standards and specifically the RICS Red 
Book which covers the valuation of local authority assets. 

We have assessed the council’s revalued assets against the 
Gerald Eve market indices and used this to inform our sample 
testing approach. We thereafter tested the completeness and 
accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the 
estimate for a sample of assets, with reference to the Council’s 
fixed asset register. We also reviewed the appropriateness of key 
assumptions and methodologies applied.  
The valuation method used is consistent with the prior year and is Green 
in line with our expectations. Non-specialised assets have been 
revalued at in existing use (EUV) value and specialised assets 
have been revalued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC). This 
is in accordance with the CIPFA Code as estimates of current 
value. The sampled assets were correctly recognised at their 
revalued amounts. 

Conclusion 

We identified that the Council’s valuer disclosed a material 
uncertainty in the valuation of the Council’s land and buildings at 
31 March 2020 as a result of Covid-19, in line with RICS 
guidance. The Council has expanded its disclosures to clearly 
refer to this material valuation uncertainty as an audit adjustment 
and included disclosures on this issue in the PPE Note (note 16). 

Assessment 

 Red: We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated 

 Orange: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic 

 Amber: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious 

 Green: We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 10 



   

  

       

         

   
  

        
       

       
  

       
        

         

       
       

        
        

       
   

  

           
   

             
        

            
             

 
             

          
   

 
             

    

 

                       

                     

                     

                

                 

   

  

       

         

   
  

        
       

       
  

       
        

         

       
       

        
        

       
   

  

           
   

             
        

            
             

 
             

          
   

 
             

    

 

                       

                     

                     

                

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements 

Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment 

Provisions for NNDR 
appeals - £2.7m 

The Council are responsible for repaying a proportion 
of successful appeals against rateable values of 
commercial properties in respect of national non 
domestic rates. 

Management calculates the level of provision required 
(the NDR appeals provision) for these appeals and 
recognises these as a liability on the balance sheet. 

Stafford Borough Council’s calculation is based upon 
the latest information about outstanding rates appeals 
provided by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) and 
previous success rates. Due to a reduction in 
outstanding appeals, the provision has decreased by 
£2.6m in 2019/20. 

We have: 

• have reviewed the appropriateness of the underlying information used to 
determine the estimate 

• considered the impact of any changes to valuation method and noted there 
were no changes to the prior year methodology. 

• considered the reasonableness of decrease in estimate and note that the 
NNDR appeals provision in respect of NHS appeals was settled during the  
year. 

Green • assessed the adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements 
and verified the disclosures to supporting working papers and calculations 
provided by management 

Conclusion 
Our audit work has not identified any issues regarding the estimation of the 
provisions for NNDR appeals. 

Assessment 

 Red: We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated 

 Orange: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic 

 Amber: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious 

 Green: We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 11 



   

  

       
         

        
           

    
    

    
     

     
      

      
      

  

      
      

      
      

     
      

       
     

     
      

     

               
                

              
                  

             

    
  

    

      
 

    

          
 

 
        

   

                
               

               
         

 

                 
             

              
             

                   
               

          
 

                       

                     

                     

                
                 

   

  

       
         

        
           

    
    

    
     

     
      

      
      

  

      
      

      
      

     
      

       
     

     
      

     

               
                

              
                  

             

    
  

    

      
 

    

          
 

 
        

   

                
               

               
         

 

                 
             

              
             

                   
               

          
 

                       

                     

                     

                
                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements 
Accounting area Summary of management’s policy Auditor commentary Assessment 

Net pension The Council’s total net pension liability 
liability – £46.1m at 31 March 2020 is £46.1m (PY £55m) 

comprising the Staffordshire Local 
Government Pension Fund and 
unfunded defined benefit pension 
scheme obligations. The Council uses 
Hyman Robertson to provide actuarial 
valuations of the Council’s assets and 
liabilities derived from this scheme. A 
full actuarial valuation is required every 
three years. 

The latest full actuarial valuation was 
completed in 2019. A roll forward 
approach is used in intervening periods 
which utilises key assumptions such as 
life expectancy, discount rates, salary 
growth and investment return. Given the 
significant value of the net pension fund 
liability, small changes in assumptions 
can result in significant valuation 
movements. There has been a £12m 
net actuarial gain during 2019/20. 

The council has engaged its actuary, Hyman Robertson, to carry out the actuarial estimation of 
the pension liability. The actuary has taken a roll forward approach to update the estimate of 
Stafford Borough Council’s share of the pension assets and liability. We have assessed the 
expertise of the actuary, have reviewed in detail the data sent to the actuary and have used PwC 
as auditors expert to assess the assumptions and methodology employed by the actuary. 

Assumption Actuary PwC Assessment 
Value range 

Discount rate 2.3% 2.3% 

Pension increase rate 2.7% 2.65 – 
2.8% 

Salary growth 2.3% 1.9%-2.8% 

Life expectancy – Males currently aged 45 / 22.1 21.6-23.3 
65 

Green 
Life expectancy – Females currently aged 25 24.6-26.3 

45 / 65 

There have been no significant changes to valuation method and the key assumptions are in line 
with the range expected, based on the PWC range. We noted significant movements in the 
experience items within the actuary’s report and made further enquiries with the actuary and met 
with the actuary to gain assurance over these movements. 
Conclusion 

The pension fund’s auditor in their IAS 19 assurance letter to us, indicated that the pension fund 
would recognise a material uncertainty in the valuation of their directly held investment 
properties. Stafford Borough Council has included disclosures on this issue in Note 43. The 
auditor of the pension fund also communicated several immaterial differences between the data 
sent to the actuary by the pension fund on the council’s behalf, and the data held by the pension 
fund. These are not material and management has opted to not adjust for these items. 

We have gained reasonable assurance over the net pension liability. 
Assessment 

 Red: We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated 

 Orange: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic 

 Amber: We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious 

 Green: We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious 
© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 12 



   

  

     

  

                          
                           

   

                             
                             

                          
  

                            
                             

                                
             

                        
      

                             
                                

                           
                            

                         

                             
                              
                             

        

             

               

                            
                        

                 

   

  

     

  

                          
                           

   

                             
                             

                          
  

                            
                             

                                
             

                        
      

                             
                                

                           
                            

                         

                             
                              
                             

        

             

               

                            
                        

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Significant findings – going concern 

Our responsibility 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Going concern disclosures 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic it has been an operationally challenging few months for the local government sector. The impact of the pandemic has been felt in administration of 
grants to businesses, the operation of customer facing services and closure of leisure centres and car parks during lockdown. There has also been an impact on the Council’s staff, 
through remote working, the need to free up capacity of teams in addition to maintaining their normal responsibilities. With further challenges in reopening services under new 
government guidelines. 

Stafford Borough Council achieved a surplus of £6.6m on provision of its services at the end of the 2019/20 financial year (before other comprehensive income and expenditure). The 
council also had a healthy balance of reserves. However, due to the pandemic, uncertainties now exist over key council income streams in 2020/21. Furthermore, the council is likely to 
face additional cost pressures and will likely need to utilise its reserves in the next two financial years. It is in this context, and given the sensitive nature of going concern disclosures, 
that we have placed additional auditor focus on this area during the audit. 

We have engaged with management in discussions to assess the appropriateness of the going concern assumption. We have considered management’s assessment of going concern 
and the potential impact of Covid-19. 

Management has indicated that the Council could experience material income losses in in respect of car parking, fees and charges income. Furthermore, there is likely to be an impact 
on business rates and council tax. The overall financial impact is currently uncertain and won't become clear for some time. This is not likely to be before the end of 2020/21. These 
pandemic related income losses and cost pressures further compound uncertainties in relation to fair funding settlement for local government, which has been pushed back by at least 
12 months along with business rates revaluations. Management anticipates that it may take around two years before the Council can fund its gross service expenditure without the use 
of its reserves, as set out in the Council’s revised draft financial plan, contained in the Council’s Covid-19 Impact report presented to Cabinet in November. 

We have also considered the strength of the Council’s mitigations and additional resources which have become available to the council since the start of the pandemic. We note that 
The Council has numerous mitigations in place against the financial impact of Covid-19. We also note that the Council has recourse to PWLB loans, and had not yet utilised borrowing 
from PWLB as at the 31st of March 2020. And the Council has been allocated significant additional funding to mitigate against the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, including: 

• £1.6m of direct central government funding allocations; 

• £650k in the form of the 2020/21 Council Tax Hardship Fund; and 

• reimbursements for its local share of the discretionary relief (the expanded retail discount scheme) 

We have therefore gained reasonable assurance that the going concern assumption is appropriate in the 12 months post the balance sheet signing date. However, it is ultimately the 
responsibility of those charged with governance and the Audit and Accounts Committee, to assure themselves that the going concern assumption continues to be appropriate. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 13 



     

                    
            

                   
   

                 

                      
       

    

       

       

          

                  
                     

                      
 

                     
           

                       
                     

            

                       
        

   

  

      

                 

   

  

      

     

  
 

                  
           

                   
   

                 

                      
       

    

       

       

          

                  
                     

                      
 

                     
           

                       
                     

            

                       
        

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Significant findings – going concern (continued) 

Going concern commentary Auditor commentary 

Management's assessment We discussed the appropriateness of the going concern assumption for Stafford Borough Council with management, to understand their 
process assessment of going concern and any key judgements or assumptions made. 

In preparing the financial statements management, management’s conclusion is that a going concern assumption continues to be appropriate for 
Stafford Borough Council. 

In arriving at this conclusion management had regard to the Council’s various business plans, strategies and forecasts. 

Work performed We requested and reviewed documentary supporting evidence, which are prepared by the Chief Accountant and the Head of Finance (S151 
Officer) respectively. Documentary evidence we reviewed includes: 

• a cashflow forecast 

• the Council’s three year financial plans 

• the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy; and 

• the Council’s latest Covid-19 Impact report (Cabinet meeting 05/11/2020) 

Using this information and informed by discussions with management, we assessed whether material income and expenditure streams were 
reflected in those plans. We challenged management to gain assurance that the impact of Covid-19 on key income and expenditure streams 
could be mitigated and considered whether the Council would have sufficient resources in the 12 months post the expected balance sheet signing 
date. 

We reviewed the disclosures in the financial statements and the narrative report pertaining to going concern. Including assessing the adequacy of 
disclosures in the financial statements and whether any changes were required.. 

Conclusion We have gained reasonable assurance that the going concern assumption is appropriate for Stafford Borough Council and that, in light of the 
strength of mitigations in place, no material uncertainties disclosures are required. A small number of disclosures changes were made to expand 
and clarify the going concern assumption set out in the accounting policies. 

We note that it is ultimately the responsibility of those charged with governance and the Audit and Accounts Committee, to assure themselves that 
the going concern assumption continues to be appropriate. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 14 



   

  

    
                           

   

                            
                          

                  

                      
    

                         
              

                 

   

  

    
                           

   

                            
                          

                  

                      
    

                         
              

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Other matters for communication 
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance. 

Issue Auditor commentary 

Matters in relation to fraud We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Accounts Committee, the Monitoring Officer and the Internal Audit team and 
have not been made aware of any material frauds. During the course of the final accounts audit, we have not been made aware of any other 
incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures. 

Matters   in   relation   to   related   We   have   identified   one   related   party   for   which   three   expenditure   transactions   totalling   £104k   were   not   disclosed   in   the   Council’s   accounts.   We   
parties   note   that   these   transactions   are   not   material   to   the   Council   and   that   the   transactions   were   entered   into   during   the   ordinary   course   of   business.   

However,   as   the   transaction   could   be   perceived   as   being   material   to   the   related   party,   we   would   expect   it   to   be   disclosed   in   the   Council’s   
related   party   transactions   note   (Note   38).   Our   recommendation   is   that   management   adjusts   the   note   in   the   final   version   of   the   accounts.   

Matters   in   relation   to   laws   and   You   have   not   made   us   aware   of   any   significant   incidences   of   non-compliance   with   relevant   laws   and   regulations   and   we   have   not   identified   any   
regulations   incidences   from   our   audit   work.   

Written   representations   A   letter   of   representation   has   been   requested   from   the   Council.   

Confirmation   requests   from   third   We   requested   from   management   permission   or   have   previously   been   given   permission   to   send   confirmation   requests   to   the   Council’s   key   
parties   counterparties   in   relation   to   cash,   cash   equivalents   and   investment   balances.   This   permission   was   granted   and   the   requests   were   sent.   These   

requests   were   returned   with   positive   confirmation.   

Disclosures Our review of the financial statements and audit procedures identified a few areas where disclosures have been strengthened. These are set 
out on page 24. 

Audit evidence and explanations All information and explanations requested from management was provided. The audit team note their thanks to the finance team for the 
provision of working papers, evidence and explanations in what has been an exceptional year. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 15 



   

  

     
  

                       
                   

        

                    

                       
                      

              

            

        

                             
 

              

                 

   

  

     
  

                       
                   

        

                    

                       
                      

              

            

        

                             
 

              

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Financial statements 

Other responsibilities under the Code 
Issue Commentary 

Other information We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including the 
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect – refer to Appendix C. 

Matters on which we report by We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas: 
exception • If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading 

or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit 

• If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties 

We have nothing to report on these matters. 

Specified   procedures   for   Whole   We   are   required   to   carry   out   specified   procedures   (on   behalf   of   the   NAO)   on   the   Whole   of   Government   Accounts   (WGA)   consolidation   pack   
of   Government   Accounts   under   WGA   group   audit   instructions.   As   the   Council   does   not   exceed   the   threshold   set   out   in   the   group   audit   instructions,   no   detailed   

procedures   are   required.   

Certification of the closure of the We intend to certify the closure of the 2019/20 audit of Stafford Borough Council in the audit report, as detailed in Appendix C. 
audit 

Controls recommendation No controls recommendations were raised as a result of the 2019/20 audit. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 16 



   

   

   
     

              
              

      

              
                  

               
     

             
            

          

 
 

 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

                

  

              
             
               

            

               
              

               
          

                 
                
      

                
            

           
             

         

 

   

   

   
     

              
              

      

              
                  

               
     

             
            

          

 
 

 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

                

  

              
             
               

            

               
              

               
          

                 
                
      

                
            

           
             

         

 

Commercial in confidence 

Value for Money 

Value for Money 
Background to our VFM approach 

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements 
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's 
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in April 2020. AGN 03 identifies one single 
criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.” 

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below: 

Informed 
decision 
making 

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties 

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria 

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 

Risk assessment 

We carried out an initial risk assessment in February 2020 and identified a one 
significant risk in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance 
contained in AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan dated 6 
March 2020. This risk was: delivery of financial plans and future sustainability. 

Our risk assessment is a dynamic process and we have had regard to new information 
which emerged since we issued our Audit Plan. We have continued our review of 
relevant documents up to the date of giving our report, and have not identified any 
further significant risks where we need to perform further work. 

We have not identified any new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19 as we did not consider 
Covid-19 to be a significant risk for 2019/20 value for money, given the date of the 
pandemic and the first national lockdown. 

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from our 
initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant risks 
determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the 
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper 
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion. 
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Commercial in confidence 

Value for Money 

Value for Money 

Our work 

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's 
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's 
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were: 

• Outturn in the period to planned portfolio budget for revenue expenditure during 
2019/20 

• The Council’s response to the level of Housing Benefits overpayments during 2019/20 
and the overall trend in overpayments 

• The Council’s medium term financial planning arrangements. 

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we 
performed, and the conclusions we drew from this work on page 19. 

Overall conclusion 

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the 
Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. 

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix C. 

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work 

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention. 

Significant matters discussed with management 

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 
management or those charged with governance. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 18 



   

   

   
  

                            

    

     
  

         
       

     
        

    
       

     
      

       
     

      
      

     
 

       
      

     
    

    
   

    
       
      

       
    

      
     
       
  

               
               
              
            

                   
             
               

               

               
                

              
      

               
                 

               
             

                
              

               
              

             

               
              

                 
               
          

              
                

                  
                

              

      
    

    
     

      
      

      
      

    
    

      
     

     
 

  

       
       
     
    

       
    
     

     
     

    
    

     
     

     
     
       

                 

   

   

   
  

                            

    

     
  

         
       

     
        

    
       

     
      

       
     

      
      

     
 

       
      

     
    

    
   

    
       
      

       
    

      
     
       
  

               
               
              
            

                   
             
               

               

               
                

              
      

               
                 

               
             

                
              

               
              

             

               
              

                 
               
          

              
                

                  
                

              

      
    

    
     

      
      

      
      

    
    

      
     

     
 

  

       
       
     
    

       
    
     

     
     

    
    

     
     

     
     
       

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Value for Money 

Value for Money 
Key findings 

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents. 

Significant risk Findings Conclusion 

Delivery of financial plans and 
future sustainability 

In our risk assessment as set out in our 
audit plan, we identified that delivery of 
financial plans and future sustainability 
as a Value for Money risk. This links 
mainly to sustainable resource 
deployment and to a lesser extent, the 
informed decision making criteria. In 
response to this risk, we have: 

• Reviewed performance in the period by 
comparing outturn position to budgeted 
for revenue and capital budgets, as 
well as assessing any achievement or 
shortfall of savings targets where 
applicable 

• Held enquiries of key officers to 
understand the process in place for 
future medium term financial planning 
and where available, reviewed 
underlying documentation to ensure 
assumptions are reasonable 

• Considered management's responses 
to the level of overpayments in respect 
of Housing Benefits (HB), which has 
been the subject of an internal audit 
review during the year 

• Considered the impact of COVID-19, 
the council’s planned mitigations and 
the adequacy of funding from to offset 
the impact 

The council achieved a favourable net expenditure variance of £58,000 in 2019/20 against its overall 
planned revenue budget for the year. Performance against budgets were reported to cabinet on a 
monthly basis. And the year-end variances against budgets for each portfolio were, on average, 
between 1-5% of budgets. This indicates effective financial planning and budgetary controls. 

The Council set a balanced budget for 2019/20 and transferred £83,000 at the end of the year to its 
working balance. While this was significantly below the budgeted contribution of £773,000, the 
Council was compliant with its policy to maintain a general fund (unearmarked) balance at a 
minimum of £1m; achieving a general fund balance of £1.2m at the end of 2019/20. 

We noted that income from business rates was significantly higher than anticipated during the year. 
This was due to an increase of £4.4m, comprising: additional growth (£1.3m); a one-off windfall due 
the business rates pilot (£0.6m); and changes in distribution methodology for both the central 
investment fund and contingency fund (£2.5m). 

The capital programme outturn indicates that the council had planned capital works of £4.8m, with 
actual spend coming in below that level, at £2.9m. The variance was mainly due to slippage against 
schemes within the Leisure portfolio. In part due to flooding and thereafter Covid-19 related delays. 
These schemes and the associated capital expenditure are expected to recommence in 2020/21 

With regards to housing benefits, the council has continued to work to reduce the level of 
overpayments during 2019/20. The balance of overpayments has been reduced during the year from 
£1.8m in 2018/19 to £1.65m in 2019/20. Similarly the value of debtors outstanding have been 
reduced significantly during the year, from £2.5m to £2.1m. While the percentage of HB 
overpayments for which there is recovery action has increased from £42K to £370k. 

The Council had a medium term financial plan in place during 2019/20. However this was 
superseded by the unanticipated impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The financial impact of Covid-19 
will to a large extent be experienced in 2020/21, given the lockdown commenced towards the end of 
the 2019/20. Council management acted relatively quickly to update its three year financial plan in 
light of Covid-19 and has put in place clear mitigations. 

The latest plans were reported to Cabinet in November 2020, indicating significant cost pressures 
and income shortfalls. This is partly offset by a significant balance of government funding allocated to 
the Council in 2020/21 to mitigate the financial impact. We note that the Council is likely to require 
use of its reserves in 2020/21 and 2021/22, having identified need for significant efficiencies in each 
of these years; there is also continued uncertainty about future levels of government funding. 

We are satisfied that the Council 
had proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of 
resources in 2019/20. We note that 
the impact of Covid-19 could be 
significant for the Council and that 
the future models of funding in 
Local Government are uncertain. 
The authority faces significant 
challenge in the medium term and 
therefore we will continue to 
monitor this risk closely going 
forward. 

Management response 

The Council have put in controls to 
manage the risk as reflected in the 
Councils Strategic Risk register. A 
Financial Recovery Work Stream 
has been established as part of the 
Councils COVID 19 Recovery 
Strategy. The strategy focuses on 
an interim strategy pending the 
outcome of changes to the 
Governments funding regimes and 
determination of the ongoing 
impact of the pandemic. The 
Council will examine all saving 
opportunities over the next 12 
months to enable a sustainable 
medium term to be put in place. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 19 



   

   

   

                                 
                             

 

                            
                  

                           
       

         

                 

   

   

   

                                 
                             

 

                            
                  

                           
       

         

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Independence and ethics 

Independence and ethics 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 
requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix B 
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Commercial in confidence 

Independence and ethics 

Independence and ethics 
Audit and Non-audit services 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified, as well 
as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats. 

Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards 

Audit related 

Certification of Housing £11,000 Self-Interest (because this is a 
Benefit Claim recurring fee) 

Self review (because GT 
provides audit services) 

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee 
for this work is £11,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,686 and in particular relative to Grant 
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level. 

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed. 
Furthermore, the materiality of the amounts involved are not significant to our opinion and the Council has an 
informed management team who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy 
of our reports on grants. 

These services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. 
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Commercial in confidence 

Appendix A 

Audit adjustments 
We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Impact of adjusted misstatements 

We identified one qualitative, presentational, disclosure error within the Note 30 disclosure note. The figures disclosed in relation to Purchases of and Proceeds from short and long term 
investments were presented as gross figures rather than net. This was because the figures included movements in cash and cash equivalents which should have been excluded. This 
resulted in a qualitative disclosure adjustment to correct both 2019/20 figures and the 2018/19 prior year comparators disclosed. 

There was no impact on the 2019/20 or 2018/19 primary statements, including the Statement of Cash Flows, Balance Sheet and Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
(CIES). 

CIES   
£‘000   

Balance   Sheet   
£’   000   

Impact   on   total   net   
expenditure   £’000   Detail – 2019/20 

Correction   of   Note   30   disclosure   to   exclude   movements   in   cash   and   cash   
equivalents   from   “purchase   of   short-term   and   long   term   investments”   line   
(-£114.1m).   

£0 £0 £0 

Correction   of   Note   30   disclosure   to   exclude   movements   in   cash   and   cash   
equivalents   from   “proceeds   from   short-term   and   long   term   investments”   line   
(-£114.1m).   

£0 £0 £0 

Overall impact £NIL £NIL £NIL 

Detail – 2018/19 Prior Period Adjustment 
CIES 
£‘000 

Balance Sheet 
£’ 000 

Impact on total net 
expenditure £’000 

Correction of Note 30 disclosure to exclude movements in cash and cash 
equivalents from “purchase of short-term and long term investments” line 
(-£120.6m). 

£0 £0 £0 

Correction of Note 30 disclosure to exclude movements in cash and cash 
equivalents from “proceeds from short-term and long term investments” line 
(-£120.6m). 

£0 £0 £0 

Overall impact £NIL £NIL £NIL 
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Commercial in confidence 

Appendix A 

Audit adjustments 
We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management for disclosure omissions and 
corrections. 

Disclosure changes 

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

Disclosure 
omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted? 

Material valuation 
uncertainty in 
respect of land and 
buildings valuations 
as at 31 March 
2020. 

The Council’s PPE valuer included a 
material valuation uncertainty note in 
respect of Land and gs in their Buildin 
valuation report due to Covid-19 pandemic. 

This is in line with RICS guidance and is 
consistent with the approach taken by other 
local authority valuers. 

We recommended that the Council should disclose this material valuation uncertainty in 
its accounts to aid users understanding of the accounts. 

We have included an emphasis of matter in our audit opinion to direct readers of the 
accounts to the PPE note (Note 16) where the Council has included additional 
disclosures. 

Management response 
This amendment has been agreed and reflected in the PPE note and in the council’s 
narrative report. 

 

Material valuation 
uncertainty in 
respect of 
investment property 
held by Staffordshire 
Pension Fund. 

The auditor of the Staffordshire Pension 
Fund informed the audit team towards the 
end of the 2019/20 audit, that a material 
valuation uncertainty existed in relation to 
the Pension Fund’s directly held investment 
properties. 

This material valuation uncertainty affects 
Stafford Borough Council because it 
discloses its share of the Pension Fund’s 
assets within its accounts. We informed the 
council’s finance team accordingly. 

We acknowledge that the Council’s finance team was not aware of the material valuation 
uncertainty when preparing the draft accounts; the reason for the omitted disclosure was 
because this information was not available to them during accounts preparation. 

We recommended that the Council should disclose this material valuation uncertainty in 
the final version of its accounts, to aid users understanding of the accounts. We have also 
included an emphasis of matter in our audit opinion to direct readers of the accounts to 
the Pensions note (Note 43) where the Council has included additional disclosures. 

Management response 
This amendment has been agreed and reflected in the Pensions note. 

 

Disclosure 
corrections to Note 3 
Critical Judgements 

The critical judgements disclosed in Note 3 
listed several items where it was not clear 
what the judgement was and whether the 
impact of each on the financial statements 
was in fact material. 

We recommended that the Council re-consider the disclosure. Management opted to 
simplify the judgements disclosed in the note, such that only those matters deemed to be 
of sufficient importance were included. 

Management response 
This amendment has been agreed and reflected in Note 3. 
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Commercial in confidence 

Appendix A 

Audit adjustments 

Impact of unadjusted misstatements 

The table below provides details of qualitative disclosure adjustments identified during the 2019/20 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The Audit 
and Accounts Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below: 

Impact on primary 
statements 

Detail £‘000 Reason for not adjusting 

The audit team recommended the council revisit disclosure Note 10 (Revenue 
From Contracts With Service Recipients) to consider whether the disclosure 
could be further enhanced. Particularly in respect of other revenue streams 
where there may be implied short term contracts with customers, which 
should also be disclosed. For example revenues in respect of car parking 
income and other similar fees and charges. 

£0 • Full review of IFRS15 was done in 2018-19. It is the 
council’s view that car parking obligation is complete at 
time of payment, season tickets are carried forward as 
normal accruals. 

The audit team recommended that the movement in reserves statement 
should include a column to show the ‘Total General Fund’ position, to make 
clear that the sum of unearmarked and earmarked constitute the total 
statutory General Fund. 

£0 • It was agreed with previous audit team to reference the 
total value as a note under MIRS rather than adding 
more columns. 

Overall impact £NIL 

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements 

There were no unadjusted misstatements identified during the prior year 2018/19 audit, which would have continued to have an impact in the 2019/20 financial statements. 
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Appendix B 

Fees 
We confirm below our final proposed fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services. 

Audit fees Planned fee Final fee 

Council Audit 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 

£47,686 

£47,686 

TBC 

TBC 

A reconciliation between the fees as disclosed in the accounts and the above table is shown on the next page. 

Covid-19 Impact on Audit Fees 

Covid-19 has impacted on the audit of your financial statements in several ways. These impacts include: 

• Revisiting planning - we have needed to revisit our planning and refresh risk assessments, materiality and testing levels. 

• Management’s assumptions and estimates - there is increased uncertainty over many estimates including PPE, pensions and other valuations. Many of these valuations are impacted 
by the reduction in economic activity and we are required to understand and challenge the assumptions applied by management. There are similar challenges for management and 
ourselves on areas such as significant movements in estimation of pension assets and liabilities, additional matters reported to us by the auditor of the pension fund. 

• Financial resilience assessment – we are required to consider the financial resilience of audited bodies. We are aware from discussions with management over the last few months 
that Covid-19 has had a an impact on the Authority’s medium term finances. This has increased the amount of audit work done on going concern and value for money (financial 
sustainability). 

• Remote working – the most significant impact in terms of delivery for audit teams is the move to remote working. Although we note our appreciation to the finance team for their timely 
assistance and accounts preparation, we similar to other auditors, nevertheless experienced considerable delays during the audit as a result of remote working. This caused delays in 
resolving audit queries, added complexity of reviewing working papers and evidence remotely, and overseeing audit teams virtually. The inability be on site and for example to sit with 
an officer or as an audit team, to discuss a query, working paper or audit evidence, inevitably introduced further complexity and delays into the audit. Consequently, gaining an 
understanding and resolving queries via Microsoft Teams, telephone or email has proven inherently more time-consuming. This increased the duration required to complete the audit. 
The Government’s current expectation to work from home as the default position is now likely to make this a greater issue for the audit than if we had been able to gradually return to 
our offices and Authority premises over the autumn of this year, as originally anticipated. 

We have been discussing the impact Covid-19 has been having on audits with PSAA over the last few months and note that these issues are similar to those experienced in the 
commercial sector and NHS. In both sectors there has been a recognition that audits will take longer with commercial audit deadlines being extended by 4 months and NHS deadline by a 
month. The FRC has also issued guidance to companies and auditors setting out its expectation that audit standards remain high and of additional work needed across all audits. The link 
attached https://www.frc.org.uk/Covid-19-guidance-and-advice (see guidance for auditors) sets out the expectations of the FRC. To date, we estimate that the issues highlighted above 
are increasing the time taken on audits by an average of 25%, in some cases higher. We understand from discussions with the ICAEW that this is similar to other firms. 

Please be assured that we are trying to mitigate this as far as possible through reduced travel time and travel costs and will be looking how we can absorb some of the remaining overrun 
ourselves. However, it is unlikely that this will not be sufficient to cover the full additional cost. We are aware that the Authority’s finances are constrained and we will seek to minimise 
these costs as best we can and will also consider our own performance in delivering to the November deadline. We will discuss any variations to the planned audit fee with the Director 
of Finance before reporting to the Audit Committee at its next meeting. 
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Appendix B 

Fees (continued) 

The fees table shown on the previous page reconciles to the financial statements, with the following reconciling items: 

• fees per financial statements £57K 

• reconciling item 1: accrued 2018/19 fee variations settled in 2019/20 -£21.4K 

• reconciling item 2: previously agreed 2019/20 fee variations to be settled in 2020/21: +£7.5K 

• reconciling item 2: rebate of fees from PSAA UK +£5K 
Total fees per table on previous page: £48K (rounded) 

We confirm below our proposed fees for the provision of non-audit services. 

Non-audit fees for other services Planned fee Final fee 

Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim certification £11,000 TBC 

Total non- audit fees (excluding VAT) £11,000 TBC 
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Appendix C 

Draft Audit Opinion 

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Stafford Borough Council 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Stafford Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 
which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the accounts, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies. The notes to the accounts include the EFA, Notes to the Core Statements, Policies and 
Judgements and Notes to the Collection Fund Statement. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2019/20. In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2019/20; and 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit 
Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those 
arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and 
challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the Head of Finance (S151 Officer) and the related disclosures and the 
appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments 
of the future economic environment and the Authority’s future operational arrangements. 

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date of this 
report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their 
impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the 
Authority’s future operational arrangements. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all 
possible future implications for an authority associated with these particular events. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 
where: 

•the Head of Finance (S151 Officer)’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or 

•the Head of Finance (S151 Officer) has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for 
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

In our evaluation of the Head of Finance (S151 Officer) conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out 
within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 that the 
Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the risks associated with the 
Authority’s operating activities, including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. 

We analysed how those risks might affect the Authority’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with 
the above, we have nothing to report in these respects. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are 
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material 
uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Authority will continue in operation. 

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of land & buildings and the council’s share of 
Staffordshire Pension Fund’s directly held investment properties 

We draw attention to Notes 16 (PPE) and 43 (Defined Benefit Pension Schemes) of the financial statements which 
describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s land and buildings, and the Authority’s 
share of investment properties held by Staffordshire Pension Fund, as at 31 March 2020. 

As, disclosed in notes 16 and 43 to the financial statements, the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in a 
material valuation uncertainty, which was therefore disclosed in both the Authority’s property valuer’s report and the 
pension fund’s property valuation reports. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Appendix C 

Draft Audit Opinion 
Other information 
The Head of Finance (S151 Officer) is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement other than 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge of the 
Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 
the ‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is 
misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider 
whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by 
internal controls. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of the 
Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement 
of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement, for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course 
of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the 
conclusion of the audit; or 
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the 
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough Council | 2019/20 

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Head of Finance (S151 Officer) and Those Charged with Governance for the 
financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities the Authority is required to make arrangements for the 
proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Head of Finance (S151 Officer). The Head of Finance 
(S151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, 
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2019/20, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Head 
of Finance (S151 Officer) determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance (S151 Officer) is responsible for assessing the Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no 
longer be provided. 

The Audit and Accounts Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are responsible 
for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

28 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


   

  

   
              

         

 
                     

                   
              

    
                 

                  
   

               
     

                     
                  

                 
          

                    
                    
                

                
                    

                   
    

                    
                   

         

        
                   
                 

    
                        

                   
                  

                      
                    
                      

                 

   

  

   
              

         

 
                     

                   
              

    
                 

                  
   

               
     

                     
                  

                 
          

                    
                    
                

                
                    

                   
    

                    
                   

         

        
                   
                 

    
                        

                   
                  

                      
                    
                      

                 

Commercial in confidence 

Appendix C 

Draft Audit Opinion 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

Conclusion 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General in April 2020, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Responsibilities of the Authority 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 
of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources 

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required 
to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the 
specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to whether in all significant respects the 
Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this 
criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority 
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. 

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such 
work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Stafford Borough Council in accordance 
with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited 
Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
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Commercial in confidence 

Appendix D 

Draft Letter of Representation 
Dear Sirs, 

Stafford Borough Council 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Stafford Borough Council for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are 
presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and applicable law. 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the 
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
Financial Statements 

i.We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2019/20 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance 
therewith. 

ii.We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and these matters have been 
appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii.The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any 
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv.We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and 
detect fraud. 

v.Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

vi.We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension scheme assets 
and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all 
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-
employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted for. 

vii.Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a.there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
b.none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 
c.there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items requiring separate 
disclosure. 

viii.Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance 
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code. 

ix.All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

x.We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes schedules 
included in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, 
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xi.Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xii.We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and 
liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiii.The prior period adjustment disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements is accurate and complete. There are 
no other prior period errors to bring to your attention. 

xiv.We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in light of the Covid-19 pandemic. We 
continue to believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have 
not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that current and future sources of 
funding or support will be more than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures 
relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements 

Information Provided 
xv.We have provided you with: 

a.access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 
such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b.additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and 

c.access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence via 
remote arrangements, in compliance with the nationally specified social distancing requirements established by 
the government in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

xvi.We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware. 

xvii.All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements 
. 
xviii.We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
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Commercial in confidence 

Appendix D 

Draft Letter of Representation 
xx.We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

xxi.We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and 
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

xxii.We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party relationships and 
transactions of which we are aware. 

xxiii.We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements. 
Annual Governance Statement 

xxiv.We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk assurance and 
governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the 
AGS. 

Narrative Report 

xxv.The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's financial and operating 
performance over the period covered by the financial statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee at its meeting 
on: XX/XX/XXX 

Yours faithfully 

Name…………………………… 
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‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk 

https://grantthornton.co.uk


V1   16/11/2020 09.56 

ITEM NO 3(b) ITEM NO 3(b) 

Report of: Head of Finance 
Contact Officer: Bob Kean 
Telephone No:     01785 619241 
Ward Interest: Nil 
Report Track: Audit and 

Accounts 
25/11/20 (Only) 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020  

Financial Statements Audit 2019/20 - Management Representation Letter 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To present the Management Representation Letter for 2019/20. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the letter of representation be endorsed. 

3 Key Issues and Reasons for Recommendation 

3.1 To present to the Committee the Management Representation Letter relating 
to the 2019/20 Financial Statements Audit. 

4 Relationship to Corporate Business Objectives 

4.1 The financial statements are an important part of the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements which cut across all corporate priorities. 

5 Report Detail 

5.1 The audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 is substantially 
complete. 

5.2 As part of the formal conclusion process, the responsible Financial Officer is 
required to submit the attached Management Representation Letter 
(APPENDIX) to the Appointed External Auditor having consulted with the 
Leadership Team and obtained acknowledgement by the Audit and Accounts 
Committee. 
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6 Implications 
 
6.1 Financial Nil 
 Legal Nil 
 Human Resources Nil 
 Human Rights Act Nil 
 Data Protection Nil 
 Risk Management Nil 
 
6.2 Community Impact 

Assessment 
Recommendations 

The Borough Council considers the effect of its 
actions on all sections of our community and has 
addressed all of the following Equality Strands in 
the production of this report, as appropriate:- 
 

 Age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.    

    
Previous Consideration - Nil 
 
 
Background Papers - File available in Financial Services 
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  APPENDIX  
 
 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020  

Financial Statements Audit 2019/20 - Management Representation Letter 
  

 
John Farrar 
Royal Liver Building 
Liverpool 
L3 1PS  

CONTACT 
DIRECT 
DIAL 
FAX 
EMAIL 
OUR REF 
YOUR REF 
DATE 

Bob Kean 
01785 619241 
      
bobkean@cannockchasedc.gov.uk 
 
 
25 November 2020 

 
Dear Sirs, 
 

Stafford Borough Council 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 
statements of Stafford Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are 
presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and applicable law.  
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries 
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 
Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 ("the Code"); in particular the 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 
 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting 
the Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any 
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regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the 
material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

 
vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 

valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee 
Benefits disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all 
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  
We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been 
identified and properly accounted for.  

 
vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

 
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

 
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged 
 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 
non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure. 
 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code. 
 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment 
or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 
x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 

disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The 
financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, 
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. 

 
xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed 

in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

 
xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
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xiii. The prior period adjustment disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements is 
accurate and complete. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your 
attention. 

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in 
light of the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue to believe that the Council’s 
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have 
not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the 
grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more 
than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures 
relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be 
made in the financial statements  
 

Information Provided 
xv. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation 
and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 
of your audit; and 

c. access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence via remote arrangements, in 
compliance with the nationally specified social distancing requirements 
established by the government in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

xvi. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 
management is aware. 
 

xvii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements. 

 
xviii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 

financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected 

fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Council, and involves: 
a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 
 

xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 
 

xxi. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 
considered when preparing financial statements. 

 
xxii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all 

the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
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xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement 
xxiv. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects

the Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that
we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the
AGS.

Narrative Report 
xxv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of

the Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by
the financial statements.

Approval 
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and 
Accounts Committee at its meeting on 25 November 2020. 

Yours faithfully 

Name…………………………… 

Position…………………………. 

Date……………………………. 

Name…………………………… 

Position…………………………. 

Date……………………………. 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

8



V1   12/11/2020 14.20 

ITEM NO 3(c) ITEM NO 3(c) 

Report of: Head of Finance 
Contact Officer: Bob Kean 
Telephone No:     01785 619241 
Ward Interest: Nil 
Report Track: Audit and 

Accounts 
25/11/20 (Only) 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020 

Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To present the audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 to the Audit and 
Accounts Committee for approval. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 be approved. 

3 Key Issues and Reasons for Recommendation 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts be approved by the Audit and Accounts Committee. 

4 Relationship to Corporate Business Objectives 

4.1 The financial statements are an important part of the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements, which cut across all corporate priorities. 

5 Report Detail 

5.1 Members of Audit and Accounts Committee are required to approve the 
Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 by 31 July 2020, in 
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  However as 
published on the Councils website due to the impact of COVID 19 on local 
authorities revised dates were produced as follows 

• Approve draft accounts 31 August 2020 (published 25 June 2020)
• Public Inspection period to start by no later than 1 September (started

29 June 2020)
• Publish final audited accounts 30 November 2020
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5.2 The “Audit Findings Report for Stafford Borough” which summarises the 

results of our external auditors’ work for the year is presented elsewhere on 
the agenda. 

 
5.3 The purpose of the Council’s published Statement of Accounts circulated as a 

SEPARATE BOOKLET is to give electors, those subject to locally levied 
taxes and charges, members of the Council, employees and other interested 
parties clear information about the Council’s finances.  It should answer such 
questions as:- 

• What did the Council’s services cost? 
• Where did the money come from? 
• What were the Council’s assets and liabilities at the year-end? 
 

5.4 The Narrative report on pages 3 - 22 of the SEPARATE BOOKLET is 
presented as a foreword to the Statement of Accounts to fulfil a similar 
purpose to a directors’ report in company accounts.  This has been revised 
this year to include greater detail of the Council itself, both financial and non 
financial performance, future issues facing the Council and an explanation of 
the financial statements.  It is also a separate section on the impact of COVID 
19 on the Council. 

 
5.5 COVID 19 has had a major impact across the Borough however its impact on 

the 2019/20 was relatively minor with the major incident being declared by the 
Staffordshire Resilience Forum on 24 March 2020. Additional expenditure of 
£35,000 relating to the additional cost of homelessness and preparations for 
staff working from home was incurred whereas Income from fees and charges 
was some £60,000 down mainly resulting from the suspension of charging on 
car parks. Significant changes will however occur in 2020/21 in relation to 
such pressures costs and loss of income, with the valuations of assets and 
liabilities as included in the Balance Sheet also reflecting the ongoing volatility   

 
5.6 The following comprise the key financial statements that are set out in the 

Statement of Accounts 2019/20:- 
 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
• Movement in Reserves Statement 
• Balance Sheet 
• Cash Flow Statement 
• Collection Fund 
 

5.7 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 25) 
 
5.7.1 This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the true 
cost of services to be funded from taxation.  The Council raises Council Tax to 
cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; however this may be 
different from the accounting cost. 
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5.7.2 Therefore, accounting costs which are properly recorded within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (e.g. notional charges 
such as depreciation and adjustments to pensions costs required by 
International Financial Reporting Standards) are excluded from the Council’s 
Final Accounts because the Final Accounts Portfolio spending only reports the 
amounts that are required to be met from Council Tax.  Regulation prohibits 
notional charges such as depreciation being met from Council Tax. 

 
5.7.3 In practice this means that there is a difference of £2.480 million between the 

bottom line reported in Portfolio spending (£14.509 million) and the bottom 
line of the cost of services reported in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (£16.989 million) which principally relates to the 
complex notional accounting adjustments required by International Financial 
Reporting Standards and adjustments for reserves.  Further details are 
provided in the Expenditure and Funding analysis in note 6 and 7 on pages 45 
to 46 of the SEPARATE BOOKLET. 

 
5.7.4 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 25 reveals 

an increase in the net cost of services year on year of £0.483 million (2019/20 
£16.989 million and 2018/19 £16.506 million).  This is primarily as a result of 
the £0.750 million Garden Community Grant being credited to the accounts in 
2018/19, additional waste costs of £0.385 million in 2019/20, increase in 
current service cost of £0.313 million, District Elections held in 2019/20 
£0.205 million, partly offset by a reduction in in capital transactions £1.171 
million.. A detailed analysis of the variations is contained in note 5 page 44 of 
the Statement of Accounts. 

 
5.7.5 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account transactions include 

a surplus (£2.116 million) on the revaluation of Plant, Property and Equipment 
assets as contained in the Balance Sheet together with a re-measurement of 
the net defined benefit liability (£12.013 million) in relation to the pension 
reserve. Both transactions relate to the Unusable Reserves classification of 
the accounts and hence have no overall impact upon the financial position of 
the Council. 

 
5.7.6 Overall, a decrease in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure of 

£15.831 million was recorded in 2019/20 (2019/20 surplus of £14.129 million) 
and 2018/19 deficit of £1.702 million) reflecting in the main the changes in the 
valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment of £0.822 million and the re-
measurement on the Pension assets and liabilities of £15.009 million (2019/20 
gain of (£12.013 million), 2018/19 loss of £2.996 million.  The 2019/20 
pension figure relates principally to changes in financial assumptions – 
pension, salary and discount rates used to value the pension fund assets.  
There has also been a gain in the demographic assumptions as a result of an 
update in the triennial valuation at the 1 April 2019. 
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5.8 Movement in Reserves Statement (pages 26 - 27) 
 
5.8.1 The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on 

the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into usable reserves (i.e. 
those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and 
other unusable reserves such as the Capital Adjustment Account and the 
Pensions Reserve.  The (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services shows 
the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of 
which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
on page 25 of the SEPARATE BOOKLET. 

 
5.8.2 The Movement in Reserves Statement shows that the Council’s total usable 

reserves increased from £17.905 million on 31 March 2019 to £25.078 million 
on 31 March 2020, an increase of £7.173 million.  Usable reserves have 
increased primarily due to increases in earmarked reserves of £6.936 million. 
The main increase was in relation to Capital earmarked reserves of £4.629 
million, following the allocation of economic development income received as 
part of the 75% Business rates pilot.  Additional capital grants of £0.778 
million have also been received. 

 
5.9 Balance Sheet (page 28) 
 
5.9.1 There has been an increase in net assets of £20.758 million (2019/20 £32.635 

million net assets, 2018/19 £11.877 million net assets).  The increase reflects 
a reduction in long term liabilities and an increase in current assets.  The 
pension deficit has reduced by £8.854 million which is largely due to the 
changes in financial assumptions on discount, pension interest rates and the 
impact of the triennial valuation at the 1 April 2019. The discounts, salary and 
pension rates assumptions are determined by the Actuary and represent the 
market conditions at the reporting date.   
The current assets increase of £8.094 million is in relation to year end cash 
and investment holdings these partly reflect the additional business rates 
income retained and the early payment of Business rates relief for 2020/21 of 
£2.365 million paid early as a result of the COVID pandemic to aid local 
authority cashflow.  Provisions have reduced by £2.668 million reflecting the 
settlement of business rates appeals. 

 
5.9.2 Further details of changes are provided in Page 20 of the narrative report in 

the SEPARATE BOOKLET. 
 

5.10 Cash Flow Statement (page 29) 
 
5.10.1 The Cash Flow Statement summarises flows of cash in and out of the 

Council’s bank accounts.  The change in the value of cash and cash 
equivalents year on year (£6.217 million) is primarily due to the movement in 
short term investments and cash and cash equivalents as per 5.8.1, partly 
offset by changes in financing activities reflecting business rates year end 
position.  Further details are provided in notes 29, 30 and 31 on pages 66 and 
67 of the SEPARATE BOOKLET. 
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5.11 Collection Fund (page 83) 

5.11.1 As a billing authority, the Council is required to provide the Collection Fund 
Income and Expenditure Account which summarises the collection and 
distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and National Non-
Domestic Rates. 

5.11.2 The net position on the Collection Fund in respect of council tax for the year 
was a surplus of £0.459 million. After taking account of previous years’ 
accumulated surpluses of (£1.653 million) this provides a cumulative surplus 
of £2.112 million (of which £0.220 million relates to this Council).  The surplus 
will be taken into account within the Council Tax calculations for 2021/22. 

5.11.3 The net position on the Collection Fund in respect of National Non-Domestic 
Rates for the year is a surplus of £3.492 million (after distribution in year of 
£1.555 million) which after taking account of brought forward deficits of £3.758 
million leaves a net deficit of £0.266 million (of which £0.105 million relates to 
this Council).  The in-year surplus is principally due to reductions in the 
provision for business rates appeals, partly offset by the redistribution of 
surplus during the year. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial Included in the report 
Legal Nil 
Human Resources Nil 
Human Rights Act Nil 
Data Protection Nil 
Risk Management The main risk associated with the publication of 

the Statement of Accounts is the impact on the 
audit opinion.  An adverse audit opinion could 
cause significant damage to the Council’s 
reputation. 

6.2 Community Impact 
Assessment 
Recommendations 

The Borough Council considers the effect of its 
actions on all sections of our community and has 
addressed all of the following Equality Strands in 
the production of this report, as appropriate:- 

Age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. 

Previous Consideration - Nil 

Background Papers - Available in Financial Services 
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ITEM NO 3(d) ITEM NO 3(d) 

Report of: Head of Finance 
Contact Officer: Bob Kean 
Telephone No:     01785 619241 
Ward Interest: Nil 
Report Track: Audit and Accnts 

25/11/2020 
Council 
26/01/2021 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020 

Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To update members on treasury management activity and performance during 
the 2019/20 financial year. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 To note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20; 

2.2 To approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators set out in 
the APPENDIX. 

3 Key Issues and Reasons for Recommendation 

3.1 Treasury management activity and performance during the 2019/20 financial 
year. 

4 Relationship to Corporate Business Objectives 

4.1 Treasury management and investment activity link in with all of the Council’s 
priorities and their spending plans. 
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5 Report Detail  
 

Background  

5.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government 
Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and 
the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets 
the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management, (the Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities, (the Prudential Code). 

5.2 During 2019/20 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council 
should receive the following reports: 

• an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year 

• a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report 

• an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 
compared to the strategy (this report)  

5.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review 
and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is, 
therefore, important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn 
position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s 
policies previously approved by members.   

5.4 This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the 
Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by 
the Audit and Accounts Committee before they were reported to the full 
Council. Training has been undertaken by members of the Audit and 
Accounts Committee and further training will be arranged as required. 

 The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 

5.5 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These 
activities may either be: 

• Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue 
resources (capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), 
which has no resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply 
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

5.6 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  
This is detailed in the APPENDIX. 
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 The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need 

5.7 The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is 
termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).   

5.8 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are 
prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council 
should ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding 
year (2018/19) plus the estimates of any additional capital financing 
requirement for the current (2019/20) and next two financial years.  This 
essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure.  This indicator allowed the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2019/20.  The table in the appendix 
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The 
Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 

5.9 The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” 
required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, 
the Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  The table in 
the appendix demonstrates that during 2019/20 the Council has maintained 
gross borrowing within its authorised limit. 

5.10 The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected 
borrowing position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual 
position is either below or over the boundary are acceptable subject to the 
authorised limit not being breached. 

5.11 Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this 
indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long 
term obligation costs net of investment income), against the net revenue 
stream. 

  Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020 

5.12 At the beginning and the end of 2019/20 the Council‘s treasury, (excluding 
borrowing by PFI and finance leases), position was as follows: 

  
Debt Portfolio 

31 March 
2019 

 Principal 

Rate/ 
Return 

Average 
Life 

(yrs.) 

31 March 
2020 

 Principal 

Rate/ 
Return 

Average 
Life 

(yrs.) 
Total debt 
(PWLB) 

£0m 
  

£0m   

CFR £5.1m 
  

£4.8m   
Over / (under) 
borrowing 

(£5.1m) 
  

(£4.8m)   

Total investments £30.0m 0.69% 0.21 £35.3m 0.81% 0.24 

Net investments £30.0m 
  

£35.3m   
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5.12.1 The following table sets out the Council’s investments held at 31 March 2020: 
 
Counterparty Start Date/End Date Value (£) Rate % 
Santander UK 180 Day Notice 6,000,000 1.0 
Aberdeen GBP Liquidity 
Fund 

Money Market Fund 4,000,000 0.46 

Federated Prime Fund Class  Money Market Fund 800,000 0.54 
Deutsche Bank Money Market Fund 4,000,000 0.50 
Invesco Money Market Fund 6,000,000 0.54 
Morgan Stanley Money Market Fund 3,500,000 0.48 
Handelsbanken Call Account 2,000,000 0.55 
Helaba 15/11/2019 – 15/05/2020 2,000,000 0.85  
Slough Borough Council 29/11/2019 – 29/05/2020 5,000,000 0.82 
Bank of Scotland (RFB) 15/07/2019 – 14/07/2020 2,000,000 1.25 
  35,300,000  
 
 
5.13 All investments in the portfolio have a maturity of under 1 year. 
 

Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 
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5.14  Investment returns remained low during 2019/20.   The expectation for 
interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2019/20 was that 
Bank Rate would stay at 0.75% during 2019/20 as it was not expected that 
the MPC would be able to deliver on an increase in Bank Rate until the Brexit 
issue was finally settled.  However, there was an expectation that Bank Rate 
would rise after that issue was settled, but would only rise to 1.0% during 
2020.   

5.15  Rising concerns over the possibility that the UK could leave the EU at the end 
of October 2019 caused longer term investment rates to be on a falling trend 
for most of April to September. They then rose after the end of October 
deadline was rejected by the Commons but fell back again in January before 
recovering again after the 31 January departure of the UK from the EU.  
When the coronavirus outbreak hit the UK in February/March, rates initially 
plunged but then rose sharply back up again due to a shortage of liquidity in 
financial markets.  Prior to the COVID pandemic as longer term rates were 
significantly higher than shorter term rates during the year, value was 
therefore sought by placing longer term investments where cash balances 
were sufficient to allow this. 

5.16  While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully 
appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in 
terms of additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the 
financial crisis. These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for 
financial institutions, with annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how 
institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme stressed market and 
economic conditions. 

5.17  Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed 
strategy of using reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather 
than borrowing externally from the financial markets. External borrowing 
would have incurred an additional cost, due to the differential between 
borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown above and 
below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the 
counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the 
financial markets. 

 Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 

5.18 During 2019-20, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This 
meant that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), 
was not fully funded with loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s 
reserves, balances and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This 
strategy was prudent as investment returns were low and minimising 
counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered. 

5.19 A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that 
was not immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have 
caused a temporary increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a 
revenue cost – the difference between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) 
investment returns. 
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5.20 The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, 
has served well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review 
to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may 
not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the 
refinancing of maturing debt. 

5.21 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution 
was adopted with the treasury operations. The Head of Finance therefore 
monitored interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy 
based upon the following principles to manage interest rate risks 

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long
and short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around
relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings
would have been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate
funding into short term borrowing would have been considered.

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE
in long and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an
acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in
the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a sudden
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position would have been re-
appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding would have been drawn whilst
interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in the next few
years.

5.22 Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term 
fixed borrowing rates during 2019/20 and the two subsequent financial years.  
Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of 
borrowing over the period.   

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View     31.1.20
Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22

Bank Rate View 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

3 Month LIBID 0.70 0.70 0.80 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30

6 Month LIBID 0.80 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.40 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

12 Month LIBID 0.90 0.90 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.40 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.70

5yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.80 3.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.00 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.30

25yr PWLB Rate 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.20 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.90

50yr PWLB Rate 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.10 3.20 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.20 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.80
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5.23 PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government 

bonds) yields through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to 
gilt yields. There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that 
bond markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields 
down to historically very low levels. The context for that was heightened 
expectations that the US could have been heading for a recession in 2020, 
and a general background of a downturn in world economic growth, especially 
due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the US and China, 
together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and expected 
to remain subdued; these conditions were conducive to very low bond yields.  
While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over 
the last 30 years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for 
central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by 
consumers: this means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much 
now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has 
pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial 
markets over the last 30 years.  We have therefore seen, over the last year, 
many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative. In addition, 
there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 
year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a 
precursor of a recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond prices are 
elevated as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. 
shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out 
of equities.   
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5.24 Gilt yields were on a generally falling trend during the last year up until the 
coronavirus crisis hit western economies. Since then, gilt yields have fallen 
sharply to unprecedented lows as investors have panicked in selling shares in 
anticipation of impending recessions in western economies, and moved cash 
into safe haven assets i.e. government bonds. However, major western 
central banks also started quantitative easing purchases of government bonds 
which will act to maintain downward pressure on government bond yields at a 
time when there is going to be a huge and quick expansion of government 
expenditure financed by issuing government bonds; (this would normally 
cause bond yields to rise).  At the close of the day on 31 March, all gilt yields 
from 1 to 5 years were between 0.12 – 0.20% while even 25-year yields were 
at only 0.83%.   

5.25 However, HM Treasury has imposed two changes in the margins over gilt 
yields for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 
October 2019, added an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB rates.  
That increase was then partially reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11 
March 2020, at the same time as the Government announced in the Budget a 
programme of increased spending on infrastructure expenditure. It also 
announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on 
possibly further amending these margins; this ends on 4 June. It is clear that 
the Treasury intends to put a stop to local authorities borrowing money from 
the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an 
income stream. 

5.26 Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the 
current situation is as follows: -  

• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 There is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two 
years as it will take national economies a prolonged period to recover all the 
momentum they will lose in the sharp recession that will be caused during the 
coronavirus shut down period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this 
period and could even turn negative in some major western economies during 
2020-21. 

 Borrowing Outturn 

5.27 Borrowing - Due to investment concerns, both counterparty risk and low 
investment returns, no borrowing was undertaken during the year. 
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Investment Outturn 

5.28 Investment Policy - the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG 
guidance, which has been implemented in the approved annual investment 
strategy. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main 
credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional market data, (such as 
rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc).   

5.29 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, 
and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

5.30 Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital 
resources and cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources 
comprised as follows: 

Balance Sheet Resources (£m) 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 
 £’000 £’000 
Earmarked Fund balances / reserves 11,556 19,888 
Unallocated Reserves 312 226 
Capital receipts 2,696 2,242 
Provisions 2,647 2,693 
Other 2,945 2,808 
Total 20,156 27,857 
 
5.31 Investments held by the Council 

• The Council maintained an average balance of £45.2m of internally 
managed funds.   

• The internally managed funds earned an average rate of return of 0.81%.   
• The comparable performance indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, 

which was 0.53%.  
• Total investment income was £363,623 compared to a budget of £236,000 

5.32 Due to the unforeseen Government grants to assist in dealing with the 
coronavirus outbreak, balances were held with Barclays were temporarily in 
excess of £6m to ensure the council had adequate liquidity to make the grant 
payments out swiftly. 
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6 Implications 
 
6.1 Financial Included in the report 
 Legal Nil 
 Human Resources Nil 
 Human Rights Act Nil 
 Data Protection Nil 
 Risk Management Included in the report 
 
6.2 Community Impact 

Assessment 
Recommendations 

The Borough Council considers the effect of its 
actions on all sections of our community and has 
addressed all of the following Equality Strands in 
the production of this report, as appropriate:- 
 
Age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.  

    
Previous Consideration - Nil 
 
 
Background Papers - Available in Financial Services 
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  APPENDIX 1 
 
 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020 

Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 
 
1. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 

  Actual Estimate Actual 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Capital Expenditure 9,633 4,878 2,894 

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue 
stream 

0.3% 0.5% -0.2% 

Gross borrowing requirement 2,553 2,301 2,301 

Gross debt 0 0 0 

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 
March 

5,142 4,764 4,786 

Annual change in Cap. Financing 
Requirement 

1,160 -378 -356 

2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT   
INDICATORS  

   

Authorised Limit for external debt -  7,284 8,445 8,445 

Operational Boundary for external debt 4,284 5,445 5,445 

Actual external debt 0 0 0 
 
 
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during 
2019/ 

upper limit lower limit 

under 12 months  100% 0% 
12 months and within 24 months 100% 0% 
24 months and within 5 years  100% 0% 
5 years and within 10 years 100% 0% 
10 years and above 100% 0% 
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  APPENDIX 2 
 
 

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020 

Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 
 
The following table sets out an analysis of investments held at 31 March 2020 (together 
with a comparator at 31 March 2019). 

 
 
 

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO Actual 
31.3.19 
 

Actual 
31.3.19 
% 

Actual 
31.3.20 
 

Actual 
31.3.20 
% 

Money Market Funds £12.0m 40% £18.3m 52% 
Banks £8.0m 27% £12.0m 34% 
Building Societies     
CD’s     
Local authorities £10.0m 33% £5.0m 14% 
TOTAL TREASURY 
INVESTMENTS 

£30.0m 100% £35.3m 100% 
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